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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

COUNTY OF KING 
 

ROXANN BROWN aQd MICHELLE SMITH, 
RQ WheiU RZQ behaOf aQd RQ behaOf Rf RWheUV 
ViPiOaUO\ ViWXaWed, 
 

POaiQWiffV, 
 

Y. 
 

OLD NAVY, LLC; OLD NAVY (APPAREL), 
LLC; OLD NAVY HOLDINGS, LLC; GPS 
SERVICES, INC.; aQd THE GAP, INC., 
iQcOXViYe, 
 

DefeQdaQWV. 
 

CaVe NR.:  
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR 
VIOLATION OF THE CONSUMER 
PROTECTION ACT, RCW 19.86, AND 
THE COMMERCIAL ELECTRONIC 
MAIL ACT, RCW 19.190 
 
DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

       
I. NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. ThiV iV a cOaVV acWiRQ agaiQVW DefeQdaQWV OOd NaY\, LLC, OOd NaY\ (ASSaUeO), 

LLC, OOd NaY\ HROdiQgV, LLC, GPS SeUYiceV, IQc., aQd The GaS, IQc. (cROOecWiYeO\, ³OOd NaY\´ 

RU ³DefeQdaQWV´) fRU faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg ePaiO PaUNeWiQg.  

2. OOd NaY\ VeQdV ePaiOV WR WaVhiQgWRQ cRQVXPeUV Zhich cRQWaiQ faOVe RU 

PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQeV. FRU e[aPSOe, OOd NaY\ VeQdV ePaiOV WhaW PiV-VWaWe 

Whe dXUaWiRQ Rf giYeQ SURPRWiRQV, iQ aQ aSSaUeQW effRUW WR dUiYe VaOeV b\ cUeaWiQg a faOVe VeQVe Rf 

XUgeQc\. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf WheVe NiQdV Rf ePaiOV faOVeO\ cOaiPV WhaW a ceUWaiQ VaOe RU diVcRXQW iV 

OiPiWed WR a VSecific WiPe, VXch aV ³WRda\ RQO\´ RU ³3 DAYS ONLY,´ ZheQ, iQ UeaOiW\, Whe RffeU 

OaVWV ORQgeU WhaQ adYeUWiVed RU Whe iWeP haV aOUead\ beeQ RQ VaOe fRU ORQgeU WhaQ adYeUWiVed. AV 
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aQRWheU e[aPSOe, OOd NaY\ VeQdV ePaiOV ZiWh VXbMecW OiQeV cOaiPiQg WhaW a VaOe RU diVcRXQW haV 

beeQ ³e[WeQded,´ ZheQ, iQ UeaOiW\, OOd NaY\ aOZa\V SOaQQed Whe VaOe WR cRQWiQXe dXUiQg Whe 

adYeUWiVed e[WeQViRQ.  

3. OOd NaY\ aOVR XVeV iWV SUecRQceiYed ³VaOe e[WeQViRQV´ aV aQ e[cXVe WR VeQd 

cRQVXPeUV addiWiRQaO ePaiOV SXUSRUWiQg WR QRWif\ WheP WhaW a VaOe iV eQdiQg RU WhaW a VaOe haV beeQ 

e[WeQded.  ThiV SUacWice caXVeV cRQVXPeUV¶ iQbR[eV WR becRPe iQfOaWed ZiWh VSaP. 

4. OOd NaY\¶V SUacWice Rf VeQdiQg VeUiaO ePaiOV abRXW VaOeV ZiWh iPagiQaU\ WiPe 

OiPiWV, faNe e[WeQViRQV, aQd PRUe iOOXVRU\ VSeciaO RffeUV YiROaWeV Whe WaVhiQgWRQ CRPPeUciaO 

EOecWURQic MaiO AcW (³CEMA´), RCW 19.190, aQd Whe WaVhiQgWRQ CRQVXPeU PURWecWiRQ AcW, 

RCW 19.86. 

5. B\ VeQdiQg ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ WR POaiQWiffV aQd Whe 

COaVV (defiQed beORZ), OOd NaY\ cORgV ePaiOV iQbR[eV ZiWh faOVe iQfRUPaWiRQ aQd YiROaWeV 

POaiQWiffV¶ aQd COaVV PePbeUV¶ UighW WR be fUee fURP deceSWiYe cRPPeUciaO e-PaiOV. 

6. POaiQWiffV bUiQg WhiV acWiRQ aV a cOaVV acWiRQ RQ behaOf Rf SeUVRQV UeVidiQg iQ 

WaVhiQgWRQ ZhR aOVR UeceiYed OOd NaY\¶V faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg ePaiOV. POaiQWiffV¶ UeTXeVWed 

UeOief iQcOXdeV aQ iQMXQcWiRQ WR eQd WheVe SUacWiceV, aQ aZaUd WR POaiQWiffV aQd COaVV PePbeUV Rf 

VWaWXWRU\ aQd e[ePSOaU\ daPageV fRU each iOOegaO ePaiO, aQd aQ aZaUd Rf aWWRUQe\V¶ feeV aQd 

cRVWV. 

II. PARTIES 

7. POaiQWiff RR[aQQ BURZQ iV a ciWi]eQ Rf WaVhiQgWRQ SWaWe, UeVidiQg iQ PieUce 

CRXQW\, WaVhiQgWRQ. 

8. POaiQWiff MicheOOe SPiWh iV a ciWi]eQ Rf WaVhiQgWRQ SWaWe, UeVidiQg iQ COaUN 

CRXQW\, WaVhiQgWRQ. 

9. DefeQdaQW OOd NaY\, LLC iV a ZhROO\-RZQed VXbVidiaU\ Rf The GaS, IQc., aQd iV 

a OiPiWed OiabiOiW\ cRPSaQ\ chaUWeUed XQdeU Whe OaZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf DeOaZaUe. OOd NaY\, LLC 

cXUUeQWO\ iV, aQd aW aOO UeOeYaQW WiPeV iQ Whe SaVW haV, eQgaged iQ VXbVWaQWiaO bXViQeVV acWiYiWieV iQ 

Whe SWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ aQd iQ KiQg CRXQW\. 
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10. DefeQdaQW OOd NaY\ (ASSaUeO), LLC, iV a ZhROO\-RZQed VXbVidiaU\ Rf GPS 

SeUYiceV, IQc., aQd iV a OiPiWed OiabiOiW\ cRPSaQ\ chaUWeUed XQdeU Whe OaZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf 

CaOifRUQia. OOd NaY\ (ASSaUeO), LLC cXUUeQWO\ iV, aQd aW aOO UeOeYaQW WiPeV iQ Whe SaVW haV, 

eQgaged iQ VXbVWaQWiaO bXViQeVV acWiYiWieV iQ Whe SWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ aQd iQ KiQg CRXQW\. 

11. DefeQdaQW OOd NaY\ HROdiQgV, LLC, iV a OiPiWed OiabiOiW\ cRPSaQ\ chaUWeUed 

XQdeU Whe OaZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf CaOifRUQia. OOd NaY\ HROdiQgV, LLC cXUUeQWO\ iV, aQd aW aOO 

UeOeYaQW WiPeV iQ Whe SaVW haV, eQgaged iQ VXbVWaQWiaO bXViQeVV acWiYiWieV iQ Whe SWaWe Rf 

WaVhiQgWRQ aQd iQ KiQg CRXQW\. 

12. DefeQdaQW GPS SeUYiceV, IQc., iV a ZhROO\-RZQed VXbVidiaU\ Rf The GaS, IQc., aQd 

iV a cRUSRUaWiRQ chaUWeUed XQdeU Whe OaZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf CaOifRUQia. GPS SeUYiceV, IQc. cXUUeQWO\ 

iV, aQd aW aOO UeOeYaQW WiPeV iQ Whe SaVW haV, eQgaged iQ VXbVWaQWiaO bXViQeVV acWiYiWieV iQ Whe SWaWe 

Rf WaVhiQgWRQ aQd iQ KiQg CRXQW\. 

13. DefeQdaQW The GaS, IQc., iV a cRUSRUaWiRQ chaUWeUed XQdeU Whe OaZV Rf Whe SWaWe Rf 

DeOaZaUe. The GaS, IQc. cXUUeQWO\ iV, aQd aW aOO UeOeYaQW WiPeV iQ Whe SaVW haV, eQgaged iQ 

VXbVWaQWiaO bXViQeVV acWiYiWieV iQ Whe SWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ aQd iQ KiQg CRXQW\. 

14. OOd NaY\ RZQV aQd RSeUaWeV a OaUge RQOiQe PaUNeWSOace WR cRQVXPeUV iQ Whe VWaWe 

Rf WaVhiQgWRQ, PaiQWaiQ PRUe WhaQ 20 Sh\VicaO VWRUeV iQ Whe VWaWe, iQcOXdiQg 7 VWRUeV iQ KiQg 

CRXQW\, aQd VeQd Whe PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV aW iVVXe iQ WhiV CRPSOaiQW WR cRQVXPeUV WhURXghRXW 

WaVhiQgWRQ. 

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

15. ThiV CRXUW haV VXbMecW PaWWeU MXUiVdicWiRQ RYeU WhiV ciYiO acWiRQ SXUVXaQW WR, 

ZiWhRXW OiPiWaWiRQ, SecWiRQ 6 Rf AUWicOe IV Rf Whe WaVhiQgWRQ SWaWe CRQVWiWXWiRQ (SXSeUiRU CRXUW 

MXUiVdicWiRQ, geQeUaOO\), RCW 19.86.090 (SXSeUiRU CRXUW MXUiVdicWiRQ RYeU CRQVXPeU PURWecWiRQ 

AcW cOaiPV) aQd RCW 19.190.090 (SXSeUiRU CRXUW MXUiVdicWiRQ RYeU CRPPeUciaO EOecWURQic MaiO 

AcW cOaiPV). 

16. ThiV CRXUW haV SeUVRQaO MXUiVdicWiRQ RYeU OOd NaY\ XQdeU RCW 4.28.185. ThiV 

CRXUW Pa\ e[eUciVe SeUVRQaO MXUiVdicWiRQ RYeU Whe RXW-Rf-VWaWe OOd NaY\ becaXVe Whe cOaiPV 
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aOOeged iQ WhiV ciYiO acWiRQ aURVe fURP, ZiWhRXW OiPiWaWiRQ, OOd NaY\¶V SXUSRVefXO WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf 

eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR cRQVXPeUV ZiWhiQ Whe SWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ. IQ addiWiRQ, OOd NaY\ 

iQWeQded, NQeZ, RU iV chaUgeabOe ZiWh Whe NQRZOedge WhaW iWV RXW-Rf-VWaWe acWiRQV ZRXOd haYe a 

cRQVeTXeQce ZiWhiQ WaVhiQgWRQ. 

17. ThiV aOVR CRXUW haV SeUVRQaO MXUiVdicWiRQ RYeU OOd NaY\ XQdeU RCW 19.86.160. 

FRU e[aPSOe, aQd ZiWhRXW OiPiWaWiRQ, OOd NaY\ eQgaged aQd iV cRQWiQXiQg WR eQgage iQ cRQdXcW 

iQ YiROaWiRQ Rf RCW 19.86 Zhich haV had aQd cRQWiQXeV WR haYe aQ iPSacW iQ WaVhiQgWRQ Zhich 

Vaid chaSWeU UeSUeheQdV. 

18. VeQXe iV SURSeU iQ KiQg CRXQW\ SXSeUiRU CRXUW becaXVe OOd NaY\ iV Pade XS Rf  

cRUSRUaWiRQV WhaW haYe WheiU UeVideQce iQ KiQg CRXQW\. RCW 4.12.025. CXUUeQWO\ aQd aW aOO 

UeOeYaQW WiPeV, OOd NaY\ haV WUaQVacWed bXViQeVV iQ KiQg CRXQW\, iQcOXdiQg ZiWhRXW OiPiWaWiRQ 

b\ VeQdiQg Whe PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV aOOeged heUeiQ WR UeVideQWV Rf KiQg CRXQW\, aQd PaiQWaiQiQg 

VWRUeV fRU Whe WUaQVacWiRQ Rf bXViQeVV ZiWhiQ KiQg CRXQW\.  

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

A. The CEMA prohibits initiating or conspiring to initiate the transmission of 
commercial e-mails with false or misleading subject lines. 

19. WaVhiQgWRQ¶V CRPPeUciaO EOecWURQic MaiO AcW (CEMA) UegXOaWeV deceSWiYe 

ePaiO PaUNeWiQg. 

20.  ³CEMA ZaV eQacWed WR SURWecW cRQcUeWe iQWeUeVWV iQ beiQg fUee fURP deceSWiYe 

cRPPeUciaO e-PaiOV. CEMA¶V SURhibiWiRQ RQ VeQdiQg cRPPeUciaO e-PaiOV ZiWh faOVe RU 

PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV . . . cUeaWeV a VXbVWaQWiYe UighW WR be fUee fURP deceSWiYe cRPPeUciaO e-

PaiOV.´ HaUbeUV Y. Eddie BaXeU, LLC, 415 F. SXSS. 3d 999, 1011 (W.D. WaVh. 2019 NRY. 27, 

2019) (hROdiQg WhaW Whe SOaiQWiff VXfficieQWO\ SOeaded cRQcUeWe iQMXU\-iQ-facW fRU aOOeged CEMA 

YiROaWiRQV baVed RQ heU UeceiSW Rf PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV fURP Whe defeQdaQW cRQWaiQiQg aOOegedO\ faOVe 

³[[% Rff´ VWaWePeQWV iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe). WaVhiQgWRQ cRXUWV haYe heOd WhaW ³[W]he haUPV 

UeVXOWiQg fURP deceSWiYe cRPPeUciaO e-PaiOV UeVePbOe Whe W\Se Rf haUPV UePedied b\ QXiVaQce 

RU fUaXd acWiRQV.´ Id. aW 1008.  
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21. AQ iQMXU\ RccXUV aQ\WiPe a cRPPeUciaO e-PaiO iV WUaQVPiWWed WhaW cRQWaiQV faOVe RU 

PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe. Id. aW 1011. 

22. UQdeU CEMA, iW iV iUUeOeYaQW ZheWheU PiVOeadiQg cRPPeUciaO e-PaiOV ZeUe 

VROiciWed. Id.  

23. CEMA cUeaWeV aQ iQdeSeQdeQW bXW OiPiWed SUiYaWe Rf UighW Rf acWiRQ Zhich caQ be 

aVVeUWed b\ a SeUVRQ ZhR iV Whe UeciSieQW Rf a cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVage Zhich 

cRQWaiQV faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe. RCW 19.190.030(1)(b). A SOaiQWiff 

ZhR VXcceVVfXOO\ aOOegeV aQd SURYeV VXch a YiROaWiRQ Pa\ RbWaiQ, aPRQg RWheU WhiQgV, aQ 

iQMXQcWiRQ agaiQVW Whe SeUVRQ ZhR iQiWiaWed Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ. RCW 19.190.090(1).  WUighW Y. 

L\fW, Inc., 189 WQ.2d 718, 728 Q. 3 (2017) (³Ze QRWe WhaW a SOaiQWiff Pa\ bUiQg aQ acWiRQ WR 

eQMRiQ aQ\ CEMA YiROaWiRQ.´). 

24. IW iV a YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe cRQVXPeU SURWecWiRQ acW, RCW 19.86 eW VeT., WR iQiWiaWe Whe 

WUaQVPiVViRQ RU cRQVSiUe ZiWh aQRWheU SeUVRQ WR iQiWiaWe Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf a cRPPeUciaO 

eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVage WhaW cRQWaiQV faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe. RCW 

19.190.030(1). See alVo RCW 19.190.030(2) (SURYidiQg ³WhaW Whe SUacWiceV cRYeUed b\ WhiV 

chaSWeU aUe PaWWeUV YiWaOO\ affecWiQg Whe SXbOic iQWeUeVW fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf aSSO\iQg Whe cRQVXPeU 

SURWecWiRQ acW, chaSWeU 19.86 RCW. A YiROaWiRQ Rf WhiV chaSWeU iV QRW UeaVRQabOe iQ UeOaWiRQ WR Whe 

deYeORSPeQW aQd SUeVeUYaWiRQ Rf bXViQeVV aQd iV aQ XQfaiU RU deceSWiYe acW iQ WUade RU cRPPeUce 

aQd aQ XQfaiU PeWhRd Rf cRPSeWiWiRQ fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf aSSO\iQg Whe cRQVXPeU SURWecWiRQ acW, 

chaSWeU 19.86 RCW.´). 

25. TR eVWabOiVh a YiROaWiRQ Rf WaVhiQgWRQ¶V CPA, a cOaiPaQW PXVW eVWabOiVh fiYe 

eOePeQWV: (1) aQ XQfaiU RU deceSWiYe acW RU SUacWice, (2) iQ WUade RU cRPPeUce, (3) WhaW affecWV Whe 

SXbOic iQWeUeVW, (4) iQMXU\ WR SOaiQWiff¶V bXViQeVV RU SURSeUW\, aQd (5) caXVaWiRQ. Hangman Ridge 

SWableV, Inc. Y. Safeco TiWle InV. Co., 719 P.2d 531, 533 (WaVh. 1986).  

26. WaVhiQgWRQ aQd fedeUaO cRXUWV haYe heOd WhaW a SOaiQWiff VWaWeV a CPA cOaiP VROeO\ 

b\ aOOegiQg a YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe CEMA. See SWaWe Y. Heckel, 143 WaVh.2d 824, 24 P.3d 404, 407 

(2001) (³RCW 19.190.030 PaNeV a YiROaWiRQ Rf [CEMA] a SeU Ve YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe [CPA].´). 
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IQdeed, b\ aOOegiQg a CEMA YiROaWiRQ Rf RCW 19.190.020, a SOaiQWiff aOOegeV aOO fiYe eOePeQWV 

Rf a CPA YiROaWiRQ. See GoUdon Y. ViUWXmXndo, Inc., 575 F.3d 1040, 1065 (9Wh CiU. 2009) (ciWiQg 

Hangman Ridge TUaining SWableV, Inc. Y. Safeco TiWle InV. Co., 105 WaVh.2d 778, 719 P.2d 531, 

535-37 (1986)); WUighW, 406 P.3d aW 1155 (³We cRQcOXde WhaW RCW 19.190.040 eVWabOiVheV Whe 

iQMXU\ aQd caXVaWiRQ eOePeQWV Rf a CPA cOaiP aV a PaWWeU Rf OaZ.´).  

B. Old Navy initiates (or conspires to initiate) the transmission of commercial e-mails 
with false or misleading subject lines. 

27. OOd NaY\ haV iQiWiaWed (RU cRQVSiUed WR iQiWiaWe) Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf dR]eQV Rf 

cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV ZiWh faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV WR POaiQWiffV aQd Whe 

COaVV. The ePaiOV ZeUe eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV, iQ WhaW Whe\ ZeUe each aQ eOecWURQic PeVVage 

VeQW WR aQ eOecWURQic PaiO addUeVV; Whe ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ aOVR UefeUUed WR aQ iQWeUQeW dRPaiQ, 

ZheWheU RU QRW diVSOa\ed, WR Zhich aQ eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVage caQ RU cRXOd be VeQW RU deOiYeUed. 

28. OOd NaY\ VeQW Whe ePaiOV fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf SURPRWiQg iWV gRRdV fRU VaOe.  

29. The ePaiOV ZeUe VeQW aW OOd NaY\¶V diUecWiRQ aQd ZeUe aSSURYed b\ OOd NaY\.   

30. OOd NaY\¶V ePaiOV fUeTXeQWO\ adYeUWiVe Whe ³OiPiWed´ QaWXUe Rf VaOeV, diVcRXQWV, 

aQd SUiceV. FRU e[aPSOe, RQ ASUiO 30, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe, ³NR 

MRNe! $12.50 JEANS (WRda\ RQO\) . . .´ B\ VWaWiQg WhaW a VaOe iV RQO\ RQ fRU a OiPiWed WiPe, OOd 

NaY\ VXggeVWV aQ RffeU¶V UaUiW\ RU XUgeQc\, VWiPXOaWiQg cRQVXPeUV¶ deViUe WR geW Whe deaO befRUe 

iWV gRQe ZhiOe ViPXOWaQeRXVO\ iQdXciQg feaU Rf PiVViQg a gRRd bX\. WiWh WhiV ViPSOe WechQiTXe, a 

cRQVXPeU caQ be VedXced iQWR PaNiQg aQ iPSXOViYe SXUchaVe iQ a hXUU\.  

31. OOd NaY\ deVigQV Whe VXbMecW OiQeV Rf iWV PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV WR WaS iQWR WheVe 

cRQVXPeU XUgeV²gRiQg VR faU aV WR feaWXUe iPageV Rf cORcNV iQ Whe ePaiO VXbMecW OiQe iWVeOf Qe[W 

WR ZRUdV VXch aV ³WicN-WRcN´ aQd ³TiPe¶V aOPRVW RXW.´ OWheU ePaiO VXbMecW OiQeV VSXU Whe 

UeciSieQW WR PaNe SXUchaVeV, SURPSWiQg Whe UeciSieQW WR ³HXUU\!,´ ³OPEN QUICKLY,´ aQd ³GR, 

gR, gR!´ 
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32. The facW WhaW VXch VWaWePeQWV aUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg haV beeQ UecRgQi]ed b\ Whe 

FedeUaO TUade CRPPiVViRQ, Zhich diUecWV WhaW VeOOeUV VhRXOd QRW ³PaNe a µOiPiWed¶ RffeU Zhich, 

iQ facW, iV QRW OiPiWed.´ 16 C.F.R. � 233.5.  

33. OOd NaY\ XVeV Whe SXUSRUWedO\ OiPiWed QaWXUe Rf iWV RffeUV WR VeQd moUe ePaiOV WR 

cRQVXPeUV WhaQ iW RWheUZiVe PighW. OOd NaY\ Pa\ VeQd a ViQgOe cRQVXPeU XS WR fiYe PaUNeWiQg 

ePaiOV SeU da\, aQd cRPPRQO\ VeQdV WhUee PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV eYeU\ da\, PaQ\ Rf WheP 

adYeUWiViQg ³OiPiWed WiPe´ RffeUV. FRU e[aPSOe, OOd NaY\ ZiOO VeQd aQ ePaiO (i) ZheQ a OiPiWed 

WiPe RffeU VWaUWV, (ii) ZhiOe Whe RffeU iV RQgRiQg, (iii) ZheQ Whe RffeU iV geWWiQg cORVe WR eQdiQg, (iY) 

ZheQ Whe RffeU iV iQ iWV fiQaO hRXUV, aQd (Y) ZheQ Whe RffeU aV beeQ ³e[WeQded.´ WheQ VeYeUaO 

ePaiOV cRQWaiQ Whe VaPe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ abRXW Whe OiPiWed QaWXUe Rf aQ RffeU, Whe 

ePaiOV cORg XS iQbR[eV ZiWh VSaP ePaiO aQd ZaVWe OiPiWed daWa VSace. 

34. OOd NaY\ YiROaWeV CEMA becaXVe PaQ\ Rf Whe VWaWePeQWV iQ Whe ePaiO VXbMecW 

OiQeV iQWeQded WR VedXce cRQVXPeUV iQWR PaNiQg a SXUchaVe aUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg RQ VeYeUaO 

fURQWV. TheUe aUe QXPeURXV e[aPSOeV Rf OOd NaY\ ePaiOV WhaW caQ be VhRZQ WR haYe faOVe aQd 

PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQeV MXVW b\ UeYieZiQg Whe VXbMecW OiQeV Rf RWheU OOd NaY\ 

ePaiOV. WhiOe WheUe aUe WRR PaQ\ e[aPSOeV WR iQcOXde WheP aOO heUe, Whe facWV aOOeged beORZ 

VhRZ Whe W\SeV Rf faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg ePaiO VXbMecW OiQeV OOd NaY\ deSOR\V.  

1. The offer is available longer than stated in the subject line of the email.  

35. OOd NaY\ cRPPRQO\ cOaiPV RU VXggeVWV WhaW VaOeV ZiOO RQO\ be aYaiOabOe fRU a 

ceUWaiQ aPRXQW Rf WiPe iQ Whe ePaiO VXbMecW OiQe. HRZeYeU, iQ PaQ\ iQVWaQceV, Whe VaOe iV 

aYaiOabOe fRU ORQgeU WhaQ Whe WiPe SeUiRd VWaWed iQ Whe ePaiO VXbMecW OiQe.  

36. FRU e[aPSOe, RQ Ma\ 15, 2021, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg 

³$12 ZRPeQ'V cRPSUeVViRQ OeggiQgV, WRda\ RQO\´. HRZeYeU, Whe Qe[W da\, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ 

ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe adYeUWiViQg ³TWELVE DOLLAR cRPSUeVViRQ OeggiQgV´.  
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37.  The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ Ma\ 15, 2021, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe OeggiQgV 

ZRXOd be RffeUed aW WhaW SUice fRU ³WRda\ RQO\,´ ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe 

OeggiQgV ZeUe RffeUed aW Whe VaPe SUice Whe Qe[W da\.  

38. AV a VecRQd e[aPSOe, Whe MeaQV OOd NaY\ adYeUWiVed Yia ePaiO RQ ASUiO 30, 2022, 

ZiWh Whe VXbMecW OiQe ³NR MRNe! $12.50 JEANS (WRda\ RQO\) . . . ,´ ZeUe aOVR adYeUWiVed iQ Whe 

ePaiO VXbMecW OiQe Whe ne[W da\ ZiWh a QeaUO\ ideQWicaO VXbMecW OiQe: ³NR MRNe! $12.50 JEANS (\RX 

eaUQed iW).´  

39. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ ASUiO 30, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe MeaQV ZRXOd 

be RffeUed aW WhaW SUice fRU ³WRda\ RQO\,´ ZaV faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe MeaQV ZeUe RffeUed 

aW Whe VaPe SUice Whe Qe[W da\.  

40. AV aQRWheU e[aPSOe, RQ ASUiO 15, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW 

OiQe VWaWiQg ³3 DAYS ONLY! 50% OFF DRESSES, SHORTS, & ACTIVE!´ BXW, RQ ASUiO 18, 

PRUe WhaQ WhUee da\V afWeU Whe VaOe ZaV fiUVW adYeUWiVed iQ OOd NaY\¶V PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV, OOd 

NaY\ VeQW aQRWheU ePaiO ZiWh Whe VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³50% OFF ACTIVE.´  

41. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ ASUiO 15, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW acWiYe ZeaU 

ZRXOd be 50% Rff fRU ³3 DAYS ONLY,´ ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe acWiYe ZeaU 

ZaV RffeUed aW 50% fRU PRUe WhaQ WhUee da\V.  

42. AV aQRWheU e[aPSOe, RQ JXQe 4, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe 

VWaWiQg ³TRda\ OQO\: $12 caPi WRSV + $12 VhRUWV.´ HRZeYeU, WZR da\V OaWeU, RQ JXQe 6, 2022, 

OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO adYeUWiViQg caPi WRSV aW Whe VaPe SUice ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg: ³. . . 

$12 caPi WRSV (WhiV ZeeN RQO\!!).´1   

43. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ JXQe 4, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe caPi WRSV ZeUe 

$12 fRU ³WRda\ RQO\,´ ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe caPi WRSV ZeUe RffeUed aW 

Whe VaPe SUice iQ Whe fROORZiQg da\V. 

 
1 AQ ePaiO ZiWh Whe VXbMecW OiQe ³SQag $19 aQd XQdeU VW\OeV fRU Whe faP + $12 caPi WRSV (WhiV ZeeN RQO\!!) 
,´ ZaV aOVR VeQW RQ JXQe 2, 2022, PeaQiQg Whe VaOe RQ caPi WRSV ZaV aOUead\ RQgRiQg ZheQ iW ZaV adYeUWiVed 
aV ³WRda\ RQO\´ RQ JXQe 4, 2022 aW Whe VaPe SUice. The JXQe 4, 2022 ePaiO iV WheUefRUe aOVR faOVe aQd 
PiVOeadiQg fRU Whe UeaVRQV RXWOiQe iQ SecWiRQ B.2 beORZ.  
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44. AV aQRWheU e[aPSOe, VWaUWiQg RQ JXQe 7, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW ePaiOV adYeUWiViQg iQ 

Whe VXbMecW OiQeV ³$29 PaWchiQg WRSV & bRWWRPV (WhiV ZeeN RQO\!).´ The ³RQe ZeeN´ VaOe ZaV 

adYeUWiVed iQ ePaiO VXbMecW OiQeV RQ JXQe 7, JXQe 8, JXQe 12, aQd JXQe 15, 2022. HRZeYeU, Whe 

VaPe SUice cRQWiQXed WR be adYeUWiVed iQ ePaiO VXbMecW OiQeV eighW da\V afWeU Whe fiUVW ePaiO, RQ 

JXQe 15, 2022, aQd Whe fiQe SUiQW aW Whe bRWWRP Rf Whe ePaiO VWaWed Whe SUice ZRXOd be RffeUed fRU 

QiQe da\V, XQWiO JXQe 16, 2022, i.e., PRUe WhaQ RQe ZeeN.  

45. The VXbMecW OiQeV Rf Whe ePaiOV VeQW RQ JXQe 7, JXQe 8, JXQe 12, aQd JXQe 15, 2022, 

adYeUWiViQg Whe ³RQe ZeeN´ VaOe, ZeUe WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe VaOe ZaV 

RffeUed fRU PRUe WhaQ RQe ZeeN. 

2. The email states or suggests that the offer is new, but the offer was already 
available.  

46. OOd NaY\¶V cRPPRQO\ PiVOeadV cRQVXPeUV iQWR WhiQNiQg WhaW a VaOe RU diVcRXQW iV 

QeZ RU iV RQO\ beiQg RffeUed fRU a OiPiWed WiPe, ZheQ Whe RffeU RU VaOe haV aOUead\ beeQ RQgRiQg. 

SXch faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VWaWePeQWV WUicN Whe cRQVXPeU iQWR WhiQNiQg WhaW Whe RffeU iV UaUeU WhaQ 

iW UeaOO\ iV aQd WhaW Whe\ VhRXOd acW WR WaNe adYaQWage Rf Whe VSeciaO RffeU.   

47. FRU e[aPSOe, OOd NaY\ begaQ adYeUWiViQg OG SWUaighW VhRUWV fRU $16 iQ ePaiO 

VXbMecW OiQeV RQ Whe Ma\ 3, 2022. OQ Ma\ 5, 2022, Whe OG VWUaighW VhRUWV ZeUe adYeUWiVed iQ aQ 

ePaiO VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³THIS WEEK ONLY! $16 OG SWUaighW VhRUWV.´ HRZeYeU, RQ Ma\ 9, 

2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³ONE DAY ONLY ! 50% OFF MeaQV + 

$16 OG SWUaighW VhRUWV.´  

48. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ Ma\ 9, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe $16 OG 

SWUaighW VhRUWV ZaV ³ONE DAY ONLY,´ ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe VaOe 

ZaV RffeUed fRU PRUe WhaQ RQe da\. 

49. AV aQRWheU e[aPSOe, RQ JXQe 18, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe 

VWaWiQg ³@YRX: FIFTY PERCENT OFF aOO dUeVVeV (WRda\ RQO\!).´ HRZeYeU, OOd NaY\ 

adYeUWiVed aOO dUeVVeV aW 50% Rff Whe da\ befRUe iQ aQ ePaiO VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³YRX heaUd 

cRUUecWO\, 50% Rff ALL dUeVVeV . . .´  
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50. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ JXQe 18, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW 50% Rff dUeVVeV 

ZaV beiQg RffeUed fRU ³WRda\ RQO\,´ ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe VaOe ZaV 

RffeUed fRU PRUe WhaQ RQe da\. 

51. AV a WhiUd e[aPSOe, RQ JXO\ 31, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe 

VWaWiQg ³A SXQda\ WUeaW * HaOf Rff ALL MeaQV + $3 NidV deaOV.´ HRZeYeU, Whe VaPe WZR RffeUV 

ZeUe aOVR adYeUWiVed Whe da\ befRUe iQ WhUee ePaiOV VeQW RQ JXO\ 30 ZiWh diffeUeQW VXbMecW OiQeV.  

52. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ JXO\ 31, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe RffeUed deaO 

ZaV a ³SXQda\ WUeaW,´ ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe adYeUWiVed deaOV ZeUe QRW 

OiPiWed WR WhaW SXQda\.  

3. The email states or suggests that the sale is ending, but the sale continues.  

53. OOd NaY\ RfWeQ VeQdV PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV ZiWh VXbMecW OiQeV VWaWiQg RU VXggeVWiQg 

WhaW a VaOe iV eQdiQg VRRQ bXW Whe VaOe cRQWiQXeV afWeU Whe ePaiO. TheVe ePaiOV giYe cRQVXPeUV a 

faOVe VeQVe Rf XUgeQc\ aQd VSXU iPSXOVe bX\V b\ cRQVXPeUV ZhR dR QRW ZaQW WR PiVV Whe deaO.  

54. FRU e[aPSOe, RQ FebUXaU\ 10, 2019, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh Whe VXbMecW OiQe: 

³GAH! ThiV iV Whe OaVW chaQce WR geW XS WR 50% OFF . . .´ HRZeYeU, Whe Qe[W da\, OOd NaY\ VeQW 

aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³We'Ye aQQRXQced UP TO 50% OFF STOREWIDE (VWaUWiQg 

QRZ).´ The 50% Rff VWRUeZide SURPRWiRQ cRQWiQXed WR be adYeUWiVed WhURXgh FebUXaU\ 16, 2019.   

55. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ FebUXaU\ 10, 2019, VWaWiQg WhaW iW ZaV Whe 

³OaVW chaQce´ WR geW 50% Rff, ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe 50% cRQWiQXed WR be 

RffeUed iQ Whe fROORZiQg da\V. 

56. AV aQRWheU e[aPSOe, RQ MaUch 17, 2019, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW 

OiQe VWaWiQg ³$20 RRcNVWaUV + 40% OFF (fiQaO UePiQdeU!).´ HRZeYeU, Whe Qe[W da\, RQ MaUch 18, 

2019, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³UUgeQW: YRX'Ue geWWiQg FORTY 

PERCENT OFF EVERYTHING RQOiQe fRU RQe PRUe da\!´  

57. The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ MaUch 17, 2019, VWaWiQg WhaW iW ZaV Whe ³fiQaO 

UePiQdeU´ WR geW 40% Rff ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe SURPRWiRQ cRQWiQXed 

iQWR Whe Qe[W da\ aQd OOd NaY\ VeQW addiWiRQaO UePiQdeUV. 
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58. AV aQRWheU e[aPSOe, RQ NRYePbeU 26, 2021, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh Whe 

VXbMecW OiQe ³FINAL HOURS: $5 PJ SaQWV + 50% Rff ² geW \RXU gifW OiVW Uead\´. OOd NaY\ 

cRQWiQXed WR adYeUWiVe ³50% Rff´ WhURXgh NRYePbeU 28, 2021, ZheQ iW VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh Whe 

VXbMecW OiQe ³LaVW chaQce fRU $8 WheUPaO OeggiQgV + 50% OFF & VRRR PaQ\ c\beU deaOV.´ OOd 

NaY\ cRQWiQXed WR adYeUWiVe ³50% Rff´ WhURXgh NRYePbeU 29, 2021, ZheQ iW VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh 

Whe VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³FINAL HOURS: 50% OFF *aQd* $7 PJ SaQWV.´ HRZeYeU, OOd NaY\ 

cRQWiQXed WR adYeUWiVe Whe 50% Rff VaOe iQ ePaiO VXbMecW OiQeV Whe fROORZiQg da\.  

59. The VXbMecW OiQeV Rf Whe ePaiOV VeQW RQ NRYePbeU 26, 2021, NRYePbeU 28, 2021, 

aQd NRYePbeU 29, 2021 VWaWiQg WhaW iW ZaV Whe ³FINAL HOURS´ RU ³OaVW chaQce´ WR geW 50% Rff 

ZeUe WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe Whe VaPe RffeU ZaV adYeUWiVed fRU da\V afWeU WhRVe 

ePaiOV ZeUe VeQW.  

4. The email states that the sale has been “extended,” but Old Navy always 
planned for the sale to be offered during the purported “extension.”  

60. OOd NaY\ aOVR PiVUeSUeVeQWV Whe OeQgWh Rf WiPe VaOeV ZiOO be RffeUed b\ VeQdiQg 

ePaiOV VWaWiQg WhaW a VaOe haV beeQ ³EXTENDED!!´ TheVe ePaiOV aUe RfWeQ VeQW fROORZiQg ORQg 

hROida\ ZeeNeQdV ZheQ cRQVXPeUV aUe bacN aW WheiU cRPSXWeUV RU RQ WheiU ShRQeV afWeU a 

ZeeNeQd Rf acWiYiW\. HRZeYeU, diVcRYeU\ ZiOO VhRZ WhaW OOd NaY\ ePSOR\eeV did QRW gaWheU aW 

Whe eQd Rf Whe SOaQQed VaOe aQd deWeUPiQe WhaW Whe VaOe VhRXOd be e[WeQded. IQVWead, Whe VaOe ZaV 

aOZa\V SOaQQed WR cRQWiQXe aQd Whe adYeUWiVed ³e[WeQViRQ´ iV faNe.  FRU e[aPSOe, aV deWaiOed iQ 

SaUagUaSh 59 abRYe, OOd NaY\ adYeUWiVed a 50% Rff VaOe iQ 2021 fRU ³BOacN FUida\´ aQd ³C\beU 

MRQda\.´ HRZeYeU, aURXQd 2:00 AM RQ TXeVda\, NRYePbeU 30, 2021, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO 

ZiWh a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg ³NR MRNe, iW'V CYBER TUESDAY! 50% Rff haV beeQ e[WeQded fRU 

ONE. MORE. DAY.´ OOd NaY\ cRQWiQXed WR adYeUWiVe Whe ³e[WeQded´ VaOe, ZiWh ePaiOV WhaW 

VaPe da\ VWaWiQg iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQeV ³FIFTY PERCENT OFF haV beeQ e[WeQded + 60% Rff 

aWheVea SicNV´ aQd ³ORRRRh! SIXTY SeUceQW Rff cR]\ faYeV fRU Whe faP + Ze'Ue e[WeQdiQg 50% 

Rff RQOiQe XQWiO PidQighW´.  
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61. The VXbMecW OiQeV Rf Whe WhUee ePaiOV VeQW RQ NRYePbeU 30, 2021, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe 

50% Rff VaOe had beeQ e[WeQded, ZeUe WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe, aV diVcRYeU\ ZiOO 

VhRZ, OOd NaY\ had ORQg SOaQQed WR RffeU Whe 50% Rff VaOe RQ TXeVda\, NRYePbeU 30, 2021.  

62. ThiV iQfeUeQce iV fXUWheU VXSSRUWed b\ Whe facW WhaW OOd NaY\ VeQW Whe VaPe faOVe 

aQd PiVOeadiQg ³VaOe e[WeQded´ ePaiOV RQ Whe TXeVda\ fROORZiQg ThaQNVgiYiQg Whe Qe[W \eaU, iQ 

2022. OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO RQ SaWXUda\, NRYePbeU 26, 2022 VWaWiQg iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe 

³CYBER WEEKEND OFFICIAL: 50% Rff EVERYTHING (fRU UeaO!) + $12 MeaQV & $2 cR]\ 

VRcNV.´ OOd NaY\ cRQWiQXed WR adYeUWiVe Whe VaOe RQ Whe fROORZiQg SXQda\ aQd RQ C\beU 

MRQda\. TheQ, aURXQd 5:30 AM RQ TXeVda\, NRYePbeU 29, 2022, OOd NaY\ VeQW aQ ePaiO ZiWh 

Whe VXbMecW OiQe ³SSeciaO aOeUW: 50% Rff EVERYTHING e[WeQded MXVW fRU \RX + $10 WXUWOeQecNV´.  

63.  The VXbMecW OiQe Rf Whe ePaiO VeQW RQ NRYePbeU 29, 2022, VWaWiQg WhaW Whe 50% Rff 

VaOe had beeQ e[WeQded, ZaV WheUefRUe faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg becaXVe, aV diVcRYeU\ ZiOO VhRZ, OOd 

NaY\ had ORQg SOaQQed WR RffeU Whe 50% Rff VaOe RQ TXeVda\, NRYePbeU 29, 2022.  

C. Old Navy Sends Commercial Emails to Consumers Whom It Knows, Or Has 
Reason to Know, Reside In Washington. 

64. OOd NaY\ VeQW Whe PiVOeadiQg cRPPeUciaO ePaiOV WR ePaiO addUeVVeV WhaW OOd 

NaY\ NQeZ, RU had UeaVRQ WR NQRZ, ZeUe heOd b\ WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQWV, eiWheU becaXVe (i) OOd 

NaY\ had a Sh\VicaO WaVhiQgWRQ addUeVV WhaW ZaV aVVRciaWed ZiWh Whe UeciSieQW; (ii) OOd NaY\ 

had acceVV WR daWa UegaUdiQg Whe UeciSieQW iQdicaWiQg WhaW Whe\ ZeUe iQ WaVhiQgWRQ VWaWe; RU (iii) 

iQfRUPaWiRQ ZaV aYaiOabOe WR OOd NaY\ XSRQ UeTXeVW fURP Whe UegiVWUaQW Rf Whe iQWeUQeW dRPaiQ 

QaPe cRQWaiQed iQ Whe UeciSieQW¶V eOecWURQic PaiO addUeVV.  

65. OOd NaY\ NQRZV ZheUe PaQ\ Rf iWV cXVWRPeUV UeVide WhURXgh VeYeUaO PeWhRdV.  

66. FiUVW, fRU aQ\ SeUVRQ WhaW SOaceV aQ RUdeU RQOiQe fURP OOd NaY\, OOd NaY\ 

aVVRciaWeV aQ ePaiO addUeVV ZiWh a VhiSSiQg addUeVV aQd/RU biOOiQg addUeVV fRU WhaW RUdeU.  

67. SecRQd, OOd NaY\ eQcRXUageV RQOiQe VhRSSeUV WR cUeaWe RQOiQe accRXQWV. 

CXVWRPeUV VaYe iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ WheiU OOd NaY\ accRXQWV aORQg ZiWh WheiU ePaiO addUeVV, VXch aV 

VhiSSiQg addUeVVeV, biOOiQg addUeVVeV, aQd ShRQe QXPbeUV.  
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68. ThiUd, OOd NaY\ RffeUV cRQVXPeUV cUediW caUdV. CRQVXPeUV ZhR aSSO\ RU VigQ XS 

fRU VXch caUdV PXVW SURYide addiWiRQaO ideQWif\iQg iQfRUPaWiRQ, VXch aV a VRciaO VecXUiW\ QXPbeU, 

aQd SURYide a biOOiQg addUeVV WR OOd NaY\. OOd NaY\ aOVR SXOOV iQfRUPaWiRQ UeOaWed WR Whe 

cRQVXPeU, VXch aV WheiU SaVW addUeVVeV.  

69. FRXUWh, diVcRYeU\ ZiOO VhRZ WhaW OOd NaY\ ePSOR\V PeWhRdV WR WUacN Whe 

effecWiYeQeVV Rf iWV PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV aQd WR ideQWif\ cRQVXPeUV WhaW cOicN RQ OiQNV cRQWaiQed iQ 

OOd NaY\¶V PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV, iQcOXdiQg b\ ideQWif\iQg WheiU Sh\VicaO ORcaWiRQ. FRU e[aPSOe, 

diVcRYeU\ ZiOO aOVR VhRZ WhaW OOd NaY\ gaWheUV iQfRUPaWiRQ VXch aV geRcRRUdiQaWeV aQd IP 

addUeVVeV fURP iQdiYidXaOV ZhR cOicN RQ OiQNV iQ OOd NaY\ cRPPeUciaO ePaiOV, aQd WhaW OOd 

NaY\ caQ XVe VXch iQfRUPaWiRQ WR deWeUPiQe ZheWheU Whe UeciSieQW iV iQ WaVhiQgWRQ.  

70. FifWh, OOd NaY\ aOVR XWiOi]eV cRRNieV, Si[eOV, aQd RWheU RQOiQe WUacNiQg 

WechQRORgieV WR ideQWif\ aQd ORcaWe Whe cRQVXPeUV WhaW cOicN RQ OiQNV cRQWaiQed iQ OOd NaY\¶V 

PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV aQd WhaW YiViW iWV ZebViWe. FRU e[aPSOe, OOd NaY\ haV iQVWaOOed Whe MeWa Pi[eO 

RQ iWV ZebViWe, Zhich ideQWifieV ZebViWe YiViWRUV aQd caQ ideQWif\ VSecific FacebRRN aQd 

IQVWagUaP XVeUV WhaW YiViW Whe OOd NaY\ ZebViWe; iQfRUPaWiRQ WhaW caQ be aVVRciaWed ZiWh Whe daWa 

cROOecWed b\ MeWa RQ ZheUe WhaW cRQVXPeU UeVideV. OOd NaY\ aOVR ePSOR\V WUacNiQg WechQRORgieV 

SURYided b\ GRRgOe, IQc., YahRR! IQc., FXOOSWRU\, IQc., TZiWWeU, IQc., MicURVRfW, IQc., aQd RWheUV 

WhaW Pa\ be abOe WR ORcaWe cRQVXPeUV iQ Whe VWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ. 

71. Si[Wh, diVcRYeU\ ZiOO aOVR VhRZ WhaW OOd NaY\ ePSOR\V VRShiVWicaWed WhiUd SaUWieV 

ZhR cUeaWe SURfiOeV Rf cXVWRPeUV aQd SRWeQWiaO cXVWRPeUV, iQcOXdiQg WheiU ePaiO addUeVV aQd 

Sh\VicaO ORcaWiRQ.   

72. LaVWO\, OOd NaY\ aOVR NQeZ, VhRXOd haYe NQRZQ, RU had UeaVRQ WR NQRZ WhaW iW 

VeQdV PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV WR WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQWV dXe WR iWV OaUge SUeVeQce iQ Whe VWaWe aQd Whe 

YROXPe Rf PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV iW VeQdV WR SeRSOe aURXQd Whe cRXQWU\. See Heckel, 122 WaVh. ASS. 

aW 6 (hROdiQg aV a PaWWeU Rf OaZ WhaW a defeQdaQW had a UeaVRQ WR NQRZ WhaW he VeQW ePaiOV WR 

WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQWV b\ VeQdiQg RYeU 100,000 ePaiOV a ZeeN WR SeRSOe aURXQd Whe cRXQWU\). 
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73. DiVcRYeU\ ZiOO VhRZ WhaW, aW Whe WiPe iW VeQW Whe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg 

VXbMecW OiQeV, OOd NaY\ had acceVV WR Whe daWa deVcUibed abRYe UegaUdiQg Whe ORcaWiRQ Rf 

cRQVXPeUV iQ WaVhiQgWRQ WR ZhRP iW VeQW Whe ePaiOV.  

D. Old Navy initiated (or conspired to initiate) the transmission of illegal emails to 
Plaintiffs. 

74. AW aOO WiPeV UeOeYaQW WR WhiV CRPSOaiQW, POaiQWiff BURZQ UeVided iQ WaVhiQgWRQ 

SWaWe. 

75. POaiQWiff BURZQ haV UeceiYed OOd NaY\ ePaiOV ViQce aW OeaVW SeSWePbeU 2017. 

POaiQWiff BURZQ haV UeceiYed WhRXVaQdV Rf PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ ViQce WhaW daWe, aQd 

W\SicaOO\ UeceiYeV 2-3 ePaiOV eYeU\ da\. 

76. POaiQWiff BURZQ UeceiYeV ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ aW a \ahRR.cRP ePaiO addUeVV. 

POaiQWiff BURZQ haV a 1000 GB OiPiW Rf fUee daWa fURP \ahRR. POaiQWiff BURZQ cXUUeQWO\ haV aW 

OeaVW 1,243 ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ iQ heU iQbR[, bXW diVcRYeU\ ZiOO VhRZ WhaW Vhe haV UeceiYed 

PaQ\ PRUe ePaiOV WhaW Vhe haV deOeWed WR cRQVeUYe Whe fiQiWe VSace aYaiOabOe iQ heU ePaiO iQbR[.   

77. OOd NaY\ NQRZV, RU haV UeaVRQ WR NQRZ, WhaW POaiQWiff BURZQ¶V ePaiO addUeVV iV 

heOd b\ a WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQW. POaiQWiff BURZQ haV aQ accRXQW ZiWh OOd NaY\ WhaW UefOecWV heU 

hRPe addUeVV iQ Whe SWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ. POaiQWiff BURZQ had Pade VeYeUaO SXUchaVeV fURP Whe 

OOd NaY\ ZebViWe WhaW haYe beeQ deOiYeUed WR heU hRPe iQ WaVhiQgWRQ aQd Vhe haV VhRSSed iQ 

OOd NaY\ VWRUeV iQ WaVhiQgWRQ ZiWh heU accRXQW. POaiQWiff BURZQ haV aOVR UeSeaWedO\ cOicNed RQ 

OiQNV cRQWaiQed iQ OOd NaY\ ePaiOV fURP heU cRPSXWeU, Zhich ZaV UegiVWeUed WR aQ IP addUeVV iQ 

WaVhiQgWRQ aW aOO UeOeYaQW WiPeV, RU fURP heU VPaUW ShRQe, Zhich ZaV ORcaWed iQ WaVhiQgWRQ 

XQOeVV POaiQWiff BURZQ haSSeQed WR be WUaYeOiQg. 

78. POaiQWiff BURZQ UeceiYed Whe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV 

deVcUibed iQ SaUagUaShV 37, 39, 41, 45, 50, 55, 57, 59, 61, aQd 63, abRYe. POaiQWiff BURZQ 

UeceiYed addiWiRQaO ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV fURP OOd NaY\ aV ideQWified 

E[hibiW A. The ePaiOV WhaW POaiQWiffV aOOege aUe PiVOeadiQg aUe bROded iQ E[hibiW A aQd Whe 

UePaiQiQg ePaiOV SURYide Whe cRQWe[W VhRZiQg Zh\ each VXbMecW OiQe iV faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg.   
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79. OOd NaY\ VeQW WheVe ePaiOV WR POaiQWiff BURZQ fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf SURPRWiQg OOd 

NaY\¶V gRRdV fRU VaOe. 

80. OOd NaY\ iQiWiaWed Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ RU cRQVSiUed WR iQiWiaWe Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf 

WheVe cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR POaiQWiff BURZQ. 

81. POaiQWiff BURZQ dReV QRW ZaQW WR UeceiYe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW 

OiQeV fURP OOd NaY\, WhRXgh Vhe ZRXOd OiNe WR cRQWiQXe UeceiYiQg WUXWhfXO iQfRUPaWiRQ fURP OOd 

NaY\ UegaUdiQg iWV SURdXcWV. HRZeYeU, dXe WR OOd NaY\¶V cRQdXcW, POaiQWiff BURZQ caQQRW WeOO 

Zhich ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ cRQWaiQ WUXWhfXO iQfRUPaWiRQ RU Zhich ePaiOV aUe VSaP ZiWh faOVe 

aQd PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ deVigQed WR VSXU heU WR PaNe a SXUchaVe.  

82. AW aOO WiPeV UeOeYaQW WR WhiV CRPSOaiQW, POaiQWiff SPiWh UeVided iQ WaVhiQgWRQ 

SWaWe. 

83. POaiQWiff SPiWh haV UeceiYed OOd NaY\ ePaiOV ViQce aW OeaVW DecePbeU 2021. 

POaiQWiff BURZQ haV UeceiYed hXQdUedV Rf PaUNeWiQg ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ ViQce WhaW daWe, aQd 

W\SicaOO\ UeceiYeV 2-3 ePaiOV eYeU\ da\. 

84. POaiQWiff SPiWh UeceiYeV ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ aW a gPaiO.cRP ePaiO addUeVV. 

POaiQWiff SPiWh haV a 15 GB OiPiW Rf fUee daWa fURP GPaiO. POaiQWiff SPiWh cXUUeQWO\ haV aW OeaVW 

614 ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ iQ heU iQbR[, bXW iW iV OiNeO\ WhaW Vhe haV UeceiYed PRUe ePaiOV WhaW Vhe 

haV deOeWed WR cRQVeUYe Whe fiQiWe VSace aYaiOabOe iQ heU ePaiO iQbR[.   

85. OOd NaY\ NQRZV, RU haV UeaVRQ WR NQRZ, WhaW POaiQWiff SPiWh¶V ePaiO addUeVV iV 

heOd b\ a WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQW. POaiQWiff SPiWh haV aQ accRXQW ZiWh OOd NaY\ WhaW UefOecWV heU 

hRPe addUeVV iQ Whe SWaWe Rf WaVhiQgWRQ. POaiQWiff SPiWh haV Pade VeYeUaO SXUchaVeV fURP Whe 

OOd NaY\ ZebViWe WhaW haYe beeQ deOiYeUed WR heU hRPe iQ WaVhiQgWRQ aQd Vhe haV VhRSSed iQ 

OOd NaY\ VWRUeV iQ WaVhiQgWRQ ZiWh heU accRXQW. POaiQWiff SPiWh haV aOVR UeSeaWedO\ cOicNed RQ 

OiQNV cRQWaiQed iQ OOd NaY\ ePaiOV fURP heU cRPSXWeU, Zhich ZaV UegiVWeUed WR aQ IP addUeVV iQ 

WaVhiQgWRQ aW aOO UeOeYaQW WiPeV, RU fURP heU VPaUW ShRQe, Zhich ZaV ORcaWed iQ WaVhiQgWRQ 

XQOeVV POaiQWiff SPiWh haSSeQed WR be WUaYeOiQg. 
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86. POaiQWiff SPiWh UeceiYed Whe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV 

deVcUibed iQ SaUagUaShV 39, 43, 45, 48, 50, 52, aQd 63 abRYe. POaiQWiff SPiWh UeceiYed addiWiRQaO 

ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV fURP OOd NaY\ aV ideQWified E[hibiW B. The ePaiOV 

WhaW POaiQWiffV aOOege aUe PiVOeadiQg aUe bROded iQ E[hibiW B aQd Whe UePaiQiQg ePaiOV SURYide Whe 

cRQWe[W VhRZiQg Zh\ each VXbMecW OiQe iV faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg.   

87. OOd NaY\ VeQW WheVe ePaiOV WR POaiQWiff SPiWh fRU Whe SXUSRVe Rf SURPRWiQg OOd 

NaY\¶V gRRdV fRU VaOe. 

88. OOd NaY\ iQiWiaWed Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ RU cRQVSiUed WR iQiWiaWe Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf 

WheVe cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR POaiQWiff SPiWh. 

89. POaiQWiff SPiWh dReV QRW ZaQW WR UeceiYe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW 

OiQeV fURP OOd NaY\, WhRXgh Vhe ZRXOd OiNe WR cRQWiQXe UeceiYiQg WUXWhfXO iQfRUPaWiRQ fURP OOd 

NaY\ UegaUdiQg iWV SURdXcWV. HRZeYeU, dXe WR OOd NaY\¶V cRQdXcW, POaiQWiff SPiWh caQQRW WeOO 

Zhich ePaiOV fURP OOd NaY\ cRQWaiQ WUXWhfXO iQfRUPaWiRQ RU Zhich ePaiOV aUe VSaP ZiWh faOVe 

aQd PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ deVigQed WR VSXU heU WR PaNe a SXUchaVe.  

90. AV VhRZQ iQ E[hibiWV A aQd B, POaiQWiff BURZQ haV ideQWified aW 51 aQd POaiQWiff 

SPiWh haV ideQWified aW OeaVW 40 OOd NaY\ ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV cXUUeQWO\ 

iQ WheiU ePaiO iQbR[eV. TheVe ePaiOV ZeUe VeQW beWZeeQ SeSWePbeU 20, 2018 WR DecePbeU 11, 

2022, VhRZiQg WhaW OOd NaY\ eQgaged iQ WhiV cRQdXcW WhURXghRXW Whe UeOeYaQW WiPe SeUiRd. 

POaiQWiffV cRQWiQXe WR UeceiYe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV. HRZeYeU, becaXVe 

POaiQWiffV haYe deOeWed VRPe Rf Whe ePaiOV Whe\ haYe UeceiYed fURP OOd NaY\, Whe\ aUe QRW 

SUeVeQWO\ abOe WR ideQWif\ aOO Whe ePaiOV ZiWh faOVe aQd PiVOeadiQg VXbMecW OiQeV Whe\ haYe 

UeceiYed. OOd NaY\ iV aZaUe Rf aOO Whe ePaiOV iW haV VeQW POaiQWiffV aQd diVcRYeU\ ZiOO VhRZ Whe 

fXOO QXPbeU Rf iOOegaO VSaP ePaiOV OOd NaY\ haV VeQW WhURXghRXW Whe UeOeYaQW WiPe SeUiRd. 

V. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

91. COaVV DefiQiWiRQ. PXUVXaQW WR CiYiO RXOe 23(b)(3), POaiQWiffV bUiQg WhiV caVe aV a 

cOaVV acWiRQ RQ behaOf Rf a COaVV defiQed aV: 
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AOO WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQWV2 ZhR, ZiWhiQ fRXU \eaUV befRUe Whe daWe Rf 
Whe fiOiQg Rf WhiV cRPSOaiQW XQWiO Whe daWe aQ\ RUdeU ceUWif\iQg a cOaVV 
iV eQWeUed, UeceiYed aQ ePaiO fURP RU aW Whe beheVW Rf OOd NaY\, LLC 
WhaW cRQWaiQed a VXbMecW OiQe VWaWiQg RU iPSO\iQg WhaW (1) a VaOe, 
diVcRXQW, SUice, RU RWheU RffeU ZRXOd RQO\ be aYaiOabOe fRU a OiPiWed 
WiPe, aQd Whe VaOe, diVcRXQW, SUice, RU RWheU RffeU ZaV iQ facW RffeUed 
fRU a ORQgeU SeUiRd Rf WiPe; (2) a VaOe, diVcRXQW, SUice, RU RWheU RffeU 
ZaV QeZ RU RQO\ RffeUed WhaW da\, aQd Whe VaOe, diVcRXQW, SUice, RU 
RWheU RffeU ZaV iQ facW aOUead\ beiQg RffeUed; (3) a VaOe, diVcRXQW, 
SUice, RU RWheU RffeU ZRXOd eQdiQg VRRQ, aQd Whe VaOe, diVcRXQW, SUice, 
RU RWheU RffeU cRQWiQXed WR be RffeUed fRU aW OeaVW aQRWheU da\; RU (4) 
a VaOe, diVcRXQW, SUice, RU RWheU RffeU ZaV beiQg e[WeQded, ZheQ Whe 
VaOe, diVcRXQW, SUice, RU RWheU RffeU ZaV SUeYiRXVO\ SOaQQed WR 
cRQWiQXe WhURXgh Whe e[WeQViRQ adYeUWiVed.   

E[cOXded fURP Whe COaVV aUe OOd NaY\, aQ\ eQWiW\ iQ Zhich OOd NaY\ haV a cRQWUROOiQg 

iQWeUeVW RU WhaW haV a cRQWUROOiQg iQWeUeVW iQ OOd NaY\, aQd OOd NaY\¶V OegaO UeSUeVeQWaWiYeV, 

aVVigQeeV, aQd VXcceVVRUV. AOVR e[cOXded aUe Whe MXdge WR ZhRP WhiV caVe iV aVVigQed aQd aQ\ 

PePbeU Rf Whe MXdge¶V iPPediaWe faPiO\. 

92. NXPeURViW\. The COaVV iV VR QXPeURXV WhaW MRiQdeU Rf aOO PePbeUV iV 

iPSUacWicabOe. The COaVV haV PRUe WhaQ 1,000 PePbeUV. MRUeRYeU, Whe diVSRViWiRQ Rf Whe cOaiPV 

Rf Whe COaVV iQ a ViQgOe acWiRQ ZiOO SURYide VXbVWaQWiaO beQefiWV WR aOO SaUWieV aQd Whe CRXUW. 

93. CRPPRQaOiW\. TheUe aUe QXPeURXV TXeVWiRQV Rf OaZ aQd facW cRPPRQ WR POaiQWiffV 

aQd PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV. The cRPPRQ TXeVWiRQV Rf OaZ aQd facW iQcOXde, bXW aUe QRW OiPiWed WR: 

a. WheWheU OOd NaY\ VeQW cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV ZiWh faOVe 

aQd PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQeV; 

b.  WheWheU OOd NaY\ iQiWiaWed Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ RU cRQVSiUed WR iQiWiaWe Whe 

WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR UeciSieQWV UeVidiQg iQ WaVhiQgWRQ SWaWe 

iQ YiROaWiRQ Rf RCW 19.190.020; 

c. WheWheU a YiROaWiRQ Rf RCW 19.190.020 eVWabOiVheV aOO Whe eOePeQWV Rf a 

cOaiP XQdeU WaVhiQgWRQ¶V CRQVXPeU PURWecWiRQ AcW, RCW 19.86 eW VeT.;  

 
2 ³ReVideQWV´ VhaOO haYe Whe VaPe PeaQiQg aV ³SeUVRQV´ aV defiQed iQ RCW 19.190.010(11) aQd 
RCW 19.86.010(a). 
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d. WheWheU POaiQWiffV aQd Whe SURSRVed COaVV aUe eQWiWOed WR aQ iQMXQcWiRQ 

eQMRiQiQg OOd NaY\ fURP VeQdiQg Whe XQOaZfXO ePaiOV iQ Whe fXWXUe; aQd  

e. The QaWXUe aQd e[WeQW Rf COaVV-Zide iQMXU\ aQd daPageV. 

94. T\SicaOiW\. POaiQWiffV¶ cOaiPV aUe W\SicaO Rf Whe cOaiPV Rf Whe COaVV. POaiQWiffV¶ 

cOaiPV, OiNe Whe cOaiPV Rf Whe COaVV aUiVe RXW Rf Whe VaPe cRPPRQ cRXUVe Rf cRQdXcW b\ OOd NaY\ 

aQd aUe baVed RQ Whe VaPe OegaO aQd UePediaO WheRUieV. 

95. AdeTXac\. POaiQWiffV ZiOO faiUO\ aQd adeTXaWeO\ SURWecW Whe iQWeUeVWV Rf Whe COaVV. 

POaiQWiffV haYe UeWaiQed cRPSeWeQW aQd caSabOe aWWRUQe\V ZiWh VigQificaQW e[SeUieQce iQ cRPSOe[ 

aQd cOaVV acWiRQ OiWigaWiRQ, iQcOXdiQg cRQVXPeU cOaVV acWiRQV aQd cOaVV acWiRQV iQYROYiQg 

YiROaWiRQV Rf CEMA. POaiQWiffV aQd WheiU cRXQVeO aUe cRPPiWWed WR SURVecXWiQg WhiV acWiRQ 

YigRURXVO\ RQ behaOf Rf Whe COaVV aQd haYe Whe fiQaQciaO UeVRXUceV WR dR VR. NeiWheU POaiQWiffV QRU 

WheiU cRXQVeO haYe iQWeUeVWV WhaW aUe cRQWUaU\ WR RU WhaW cRQfOicW ZiWh WhRVe Rf Whe SURSRVed COaVV. 

96. PUedRPiQaQce. OOd NaY\ haV a VWaQdaUd SUacWice Rf iQiWiaWiQg RU cRQVSiUiQg WR 

iQiWiaWe cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR ePaiO addUeVVeV heOd b\ WaVhiQgWRQ SWaWe 

UeVideQWV. The cRPPRQ iVVXeV aUiViQg fURP WhiV cRQdXcW SUedRPiQaWe RYeU aQ\ iQdiYidXaO iVVXeV. 

AdMXdicaWiRQ Rf WheVe iVVXeV iQ a ViQgOe acWiRQ haV iPSRUWaQW aQd deViUabOe adYaQWageV Rf MXdiciaO 

ecRQRP\. 

97. SXSeUiRUiW\. POaiQWiffV aQd PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV haYe beeQ iQMXUed b\ OOd NaY\¶V 

XQOaZfXO cRQdXcW. AbVeQW a cOaVV acWiRQ, hRZeYeU, PRVW COaVV PePbeUV OiNeO\ ZRXOd fiQd Whe 

cRVW Rf OiWigaWiQg WheiU cOaiPV SURhibiWiYe. COaVV WUeaWPeQW iV VXSeUiRU WR PXOWiSOe iQdiYidXaO VXiWV 

RU SiecePeaO OiWigaWiRQ becaXVe iW cRQVeUYeV MXdiciaO UeVRXUceV, SURPRWeV cRQViVWeQc\ aQd 

efficieQc\ Rf adMXdicaWiRQ, SURYideV a fRUXP fRU VPaOO cOaiPaQWV, aQd deWeUV iOOegaO acWiYiWieV. The 

PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV aUe UeadiO\ ideQWifiabOe fURP OOd NaY\¶V UecRUdV aQd WheUe ZiOO be QR 

VigQificaQW difficXOW\ iQ Whe PaQagePeQW Rf WhiV caVe aV a cOaVV acWiRQ. 

98. IQMXQcWiYe ReOief. OOd NaY\¶V cRQdXcW iV XQifRUP aV WR aOO PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV. 

OOd NaY\ haV acWed RU UefXVed WR acW RQ gURXQdV WhaW aSSO\ geQeUaOO\ WR Whe COaVV, VR WhaW fiQaO 

iQMXQcWiYe UeOief RU decOaUaWRU\ UeOief iV aSSURSUiaWe ZiWh UeVSecW WR Whe COaVV aV a ZhROe. POaiQWiffV 
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fXUWheU aOOege, RQ iQfRUPaWiRQ aQd beOief, WhaW Whe ePaiOV deVcUibed iQ WhiV CRPSOaiQW aUe 

VXbVWaQWiaOO\ OiNeO\ WR cRQWiQXe iQ Whe fXWXUe if aQ iQMXQcWiRQ iV QRW eQWeUed. 

VI. CAUSES OF ACTION 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
(Violations of Washington’s Commercial Electronic Mail Act, RCW 19.190 eW Veq.) 

99. POaiQWiffV UeaOOege aQd iQcRUSRUaWe b\ UefeUeQce each aQd eYeU\ aOOegaWiRQ VeW fRUWh 

iQ Whe SUecediQg SaUagUaShV. 

100. WaVhiQgWRQ¶V CEMA SURhibiWV aQ\ ³SeUVRQ,´ aV WhaW WeUP iV defiQed iQ RCW 

19.190.010(11), fURP iQiWiaWiQg RU cRQVSiUiQg WR iQiWiaWe Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf a cRPPeUciaO 

eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVage fURP a cRPSXWeU ORcaWed iQ WaVhiQgWRQ RU WR aQ eOecWURQic PaiO addUeVV 

WhaW Whe VeQdeU NQRZV, RU haV UeaVRQ WR NQRZ, iV heOd b\ a WaVhiQgWRQ UeVideQW WhaW cRQWaiQV 

faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe. 

101. OOd NaY\ iV a ³SeUVRQ´ ZiWhiQ Whe PeaQiQg Rf Whe CEMA, RCW 19.190.010(11). 

102. OOd NaY\ iQiWiaWed Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ RU cRQVSiUed WR iQiWiaWe Whe WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf  

RQe RU PRUe cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR POaiQWiffV aQd SURSRVed COaVV PePbeUV ZiWh 

faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe. 

103. OOd NaY\¶V acWV aQd RPiVViRQV YiROaWed RCW 19.190.020(1)(b). 

104. OOd NaY\¶V acWV aQd RPiVViRQV iQMXUed POaiQWiffV aQd SURSRVed COaVV PePbeUV.  

105. The baOaQce Rf Whe eTXiWieV faYRUV Whe eQWU\ Rf SeUPaQeQW iQMXQcWiYe UeOief agaiQVW 

OOd NaY\. POaiQWiff, Whe PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV aQd Whe geQeUaO SXbOic ZiOO be iUUeSaUabO\ haUPed 

abVeQW Whe eQWU\ Rf SeUPaQeQW iQMXQcWiYe UeOief agaiQVW OOd NaY\. A SeUPaQeQW iQMXQcWiRQ agaiQVW 

OOd NaY\ iV iQ Whe SXbOic iQWeUeVW. OOd NaY\¶V XQOaZfXO behaYiRU iV, baVed RQ iQfRUPaWiRQ aQd 

beOief, RQgRiQg aV Rf Whe daWe Rf Whe fiOiQg Rf WhiV SOeadiQg; abVeQW Whe eQWU\ Rf a SeUPaQeQW 

iQMXQcWiRQ, OOd NaY\¶V XQOaZfXO behaYiRU ZiOO QRW ceaVe aQd, iQ Whe XQOiNeO\ eYeQW WhaW iW 

YROXQWaUiO\ ceaVeV, iV OiNeO\ WR UeRccXU.  

106. POaiQWiffV aQd COaVV PePbeUV aUe WheUefRUe eQWiWOed WR iQMXQcWiYe UeOief iQ Whe fRUP 

Rf aQ RUdeU eQMRiQiQg fXUWheU YiROaWiRQV Rf RCW 19.190.020(1)(b). 
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
(PeU Ve violation of Washington’s Consumer Protection Act, RCW 19.86 eW Veq.) 

107. POaiQWiffV UeaOOege aQd iQcRUSRUaWe b\ UefeUeQce each aQd eYeU\ aOOegaWiRQ VeW fRUWh 

iQ Whe SUecediQg SaUagUaShV. 

108. POaiQWiffV aQd COaVV PePbeUV aUe ³SeUVRQV´ ZiWhiQ Whe PeaQiQg Rf Whe CPA, RCW 

19.86.010(1). 

109. OOd NaY\ YiROaWed Whe CEMA b\ iQiWiaWiQg RU cRQVSiUiQg WR iQiWiaWe Whe 

WUaQVPiVViRQ Rf a cRPPeUciaO eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVageV WR POaiQWiffV aQd COaVV PePbeUV¶ WhaW 

cRQWaiQ faOVe RU PiVOeadiQg iQfRUPaWiRQ iQ Whe VXbMecW OiQe.  

110. A YiROaWiRQ Rf CEMA iV a ³SeU Ve´ YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe WaVhiQgWRQ CRQVXPeU 

PURWecWiRQ AcW (³CPA´), RCW 19.86.010, eW VeT. RCW 19.190.030. 

111. A YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe CEMA eVWabOiVheV aOO fiYe eOePeQWV Rf WaVhiQgWRQ¶V CRQVXPeU 

PURWecWiRQ AcW aV a PaWWeU Rf OaZ.  

112. OOd NaY\¶V YiROaWiRQV Rf Whe CEMA aUe XQfaiU RU deceSWiYe acWV RU SUacWiceV WhaW 

RccXU iQ WUade RU cRPPeUce XQdeU Whe CPA. RCW 19.190.100. 

113. OOd NaY\¶V XQfaiU RU deceSWiYe acWV RU SUacWiceV YiWaOO\ affecW Whe SXbOic iQWeUeVW 

aQd WhXV iPSacW Whe SXbOic iQWeUeVW fRU SXUSRVeV Rf aSSO\iQg Whe CPA. RCW 19.190.100. 

114. PXUVXaQW WR RCW 19.19.040(1), daPageV WR each UeciSieQW Rf a cRPPeUciaO 

eOecWURQic PaiO PeVVage VeQW iQ YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe CEMA aUe Whe gUeaWeU Rf $500 fRU each VXch 

PeVVage RU acWXaO daPageV, Zhich eVWabOiVheV Whe iQMXU\ aQd caXVaWiRQ eOePeQWV Rf a CPA cOaiP 

aV a PaWWeU Rf OaZ. L\fW, 406 P.3d aW 1155. 

115. OOd NaY\ eQgaged iQ a SaWWeUQ aQd SUacWice Rf YiROaWiQg Whe CEMA. AV a UeVXOW Rf 

OOd NaY\¶V acWV aQd RPiVViRQV, POaiQWiffV aQd COaVV PePbeUV haYe VXVWaiQed daPageV, iQcOXdiQg 

$500 iQ VWaWXWRU\ daPageV, fRU each aQd eYeU\ ePaiO WhaW YiROaWeV Whe CEMA. The fXOO aPRXQW Rf 

daPageV ZiOO be SURYeQ aW WUiaO. POaiQWiffV aQd COaVV PePbeUV aUe eQWiWOed WR UecRYeU acWXaO 

daPageV aQd WUebOe daPageV, WRgeWheU ZiWh UeaVRQabOe aWWRUQe\V¶ feeV aQd cRVWV, SXUVXaQW WR 

RCW 19.86.090. 
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116. UQdeU Whe CPA, POaiQWiffV aQd PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV aUe aOVR eQWiWOed WR, aQd dR 

VeeN, iQMXQcWiYe UeOief SURhibiWiQg OOd NaY\ fURP YiROaWiQg Whe CPA iQ Whe fXWXUe. 

VII. REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, POaiQWiffV, RQ WheiU RZQ behaOf aQd RQ behaOf Rf Whe PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV, 

UeTXeVW MXdgPeQW agaiQVW OOd NaY\ aV fROORZV: 

A. ThaW Whe CRXUW ceUWif\ Whe SURSRVed COaVV; 

B. ThaW Whe CRXUW aSSRiQW POaiQWiffV aV COaVV ReSUeVeQWaWiYeV. 

C. ThaW Whe CRXUW aSSRiQW Whe XQdeUVigQed cRXQVeO aV cRXQVeO fRU Whe COaVV; 

D. ThaW Whe CRXUW VhRXOd gUaQW iQMXQcWiYe UeOief aV SeUPiWWed b\ OaZ WR eQVXUe WhaW 

OOd NaY\ ZiOO QRW cRQWiQXe WR eQgage iQ Whe XQOaZfXO cRQdXcW deVcUibed iQ WhiV CRPSOaiQW; 

E. ThaW Whe CRXUW eQWeU a MXdgPeQW aZaUdiQg aQ\ RWheU iQMXQcWiYe UeOief QeceVVaU\ WR 

eQVXUe OOd NaY\¶V cRPSOiaQce ZiWh Whe CEMA;  

F. ThaW OOd NaY\ be iPPediaWeO\ UeVWUaiQed fURP aOWeUiQg, deOeWiQg RU deVWUR\iQg 

aQ\ dRcXPeQWV RU UecRUdV WhaW cRXOd be XVed WR ideQWif\ PePbeUV Rf Whe COaVV; 

G. ThaW POaiQWiffV aQd aOO COaVV PePbeUV be aZaUded VWaWXWRU\ daPageV iQ Whe 

aPRXQW Rf $500 fRU each YiROaWiRQ Rf Whe CEMA SXUVXaQW WR RCW 19.190.020(1)(b) aQd WUebOe 

daPageV SXUVXaQW WR RCW 19.86.090; 

H. ThaW Whe CRXUW eQWeU aQ RUdeU aZaUdiQg POaiQWiffV UeaVRQabOe aWWRUQe\V¶ feeV aQd 

cRVWV; aQd 

I. ThaW POaiQWiffV aQd aOO COaVV PePbeUV be gUaQWed RWheU UeOief aV iV MXVW aQd 

eTXiWabOe XQdeU Whe ciUcXPVWaQceV. 

VIII. TRIAL BY JURY 

POaiQWiffV dePaQd a WUiaO b\ MXU\ fRU aOO iVVXeV VR WUiabOe. 
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